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Delville Wood Cemetery was created after the Armistice as a
final resting place for men killed on the nearby battlefields and
originally buried where they fell or in smaller cemeteries in the
area. The cemetery contains over 5,500 burials of the First
‘World War, of which more than 3,500 are unidentified. Most of

those buried here died in July, August and September 1916.

Among the trees planted around the cemetery are South African
oaks. The site was designed to form a single architectural
scheme with the South African National Memorial, sited in the
wood opposite, originally created to honour servicemen who
served in all theatres during the First World War, and since

extended to include later conflicts.

The South African Brigade at Delville
Wood, July 1916

On 14 July 1916, the 9th (Scottish) Division was assigned the
task of capturing the village of Longueval and the adjoining
wood, key strategic objectives in the offensive on Bazentin
Ridge, part of the Somme campaign which had begun earlier that
month. Despite gaining most of their initial objectives, stubborn
resistance in the battered village stopped the advancing brigades
short of the wood.The South African brigade of the 9th
Division, which had been in reserve, was ordered to take

Delville Wood the next day.

The morning of 15 July was misty and overcast. After a short

artillery bombardment, three battalions of South African

soldiers, under the command of Lieutenant-Colonel William
Tanner, advanced at 6.15 am from the south-western corner of
the wood. At the time, the wood was a thick mass of oak and
birch trees almost a kilometre square, with dense hazel thickets
underfoot, intersected by open grassy ‘rides’ which the British
named after streets in London and Scotland. Progress was slow
through undergrowth, fallen trees and shell-fire, but the brigade
eventually took control of the wood, except for the north-
western corner where the Germans were strongly positioned.

Under constant enemy fire, the South Africans attempted to dig
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in and hold their gains.The wood now formed a salient, and
successive counter-attacks from the north, east and south-east

continued into the night.

Over the following days and nights, often in persistent heavy
rain, the South Africans faced intense bombardment from
German batteries. With little cover, snipers and machine gun fire
were a constant threat. Signal wires were regularly destroyed,
hampering communications. Artillery observation was made

more difficult by the weather, which meant the South Africans

were sometimes subjected to shelling from their own guns, and
German counter-attacks often resulted in brutal combat at

close-quarters. During the fighting on 17 July, Lt Col Tanner was
wounded and command of the men who remained in the wood

passed to Lt Col Thackeray.

On the morning of 18 July, the enemy bombardment intensified,
destroying much of what remained of the wood. German attacks
that afternoon and the following day succeeded in pushing back
the isolated South Africans. The men still holding their positions
had suffered terrible casualties and faced dwindling supplies of
ammunition, food and water. They were finally relieved on the

evening of 20 July after six days of continuous fighting.

The South African Brigade went into battle with more than
3,100 officers and men. By 21 July, it could barely muster 750.
This was the first major action fought by the brigade on the

Western Front, and its most costly engagement of the war.

Delville Wood was fiercely contested over the following weeks,
but German forces were finally driven out in September 1916. It
was largely obliterated but has since been replanted, preserving

the original ‘rides’ alongside the monument to the fallen.

Nancy, the springbok mascot of the 4th South African Regiment, pictured at Delvile

Wood in February 1918, almost two years fter the battle

Nancy, la mascotte springbok du 4éme Régiment Sud-Africain, photographiée &

Delvile Wood (dans le Bois Delville) en février 1918, prés de deux ans aprés la bataille

Commonwealth War Graves Commission

The C ission is r

ible for the

ation of almost 1,700,000 members of the Commonwealth forces who gave their lives in the two world wars. The graves and memorials of these men and

women, who came from all parts of the Commonwealth and who were of many faiths and of none, are found around the globe in 153 countries. For more information about the Commission, our work and how

to search our records online visit www.cwgc.org Enquiries are also welcome at our offices: CWGC Head Office Tel: + 44 (0) 1628 507200

E-mail: casualty.enq@cwgc.org CWGC France Office Tel: + 33 (0) 3 21 21 77 00 E-mail: france.area@cwgc.org

For more information about this location
and some of those commemorated here,

scan the QR code (right).




